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SHOWROOM HOURS 

OPEN 9AM–7 PM MON–FRI • 9 AM–6 PM ON SAT. 
SUNDAYS 11 AM–5 PM

www.MalloyClearanceCenter.com

Next to 
Carwash

CLEARANCE 

CENTER

Some units are mechanic specials. Plus tax, tags, license and $799 processing fee on all offers. Offers expire 8/14/2021.

2012 Chevrolet Silverado 
1500 LT Crew Cab

$21,997

CC2700A

2018 Chevrolet Silverado 
1500 LT W/2LT Crew Cab

$46,877

CC2707

2019 Chevrolet Cruze
LS Sedan

$17,677

CC2681

2013 Chevrolet Cruze 
ECO Auto Sedan

$7,577

CC2678

2005 Ford F-150 
Super Crew Cab Truck

$8,977

CC2615

2019 Honda Accord
Sport Sedan

$23,977

CC2665A

2825 Valley Avenue • Winchester, Va.

540-288-4944

90+  

PRE-OWNED 

VEHICLES IN 

STOCK!

2017 Chevrolet Bolt
EVLT Wagon

$16,677

CC2696

$17,677

CC2680

2010 Chevrolet Tahoe LT 
SUV

2019 Dodge Journey GT$25,677

CC2686

2012 Ford Focus SE 
Sedan

$5,995

CC2633

2003 Ford Expedition
Eddie Bauer 5.4 L SUV

$6,977

CC2670

2013 Ford Mustang
Coupe

CALL FOR

PRICE

CC2643A

2015 GMC Sierra 1500 
Base Regular Cab

$16,977

CC2698

2004 Ford F-150 Truck 
Super Cab

$8,977

CC2662

1999 Ford F-150 Truck 
Super Cab

$2,877

CC2605A

2015 Dodge Durango
Limited SUV

$22,377

CC2695

2019 Ford F-150 Super 
Cab Styleside

$34,577

CC2673

2018 Chevrolet Equinox 
LT W/1LT SUV

$22,998

CC2708

2014 Ford Focus SE
Hatchback

$5,995

CC2638

2017 Ford F-150 Truck 
Super Crew Cab

$34,977

CC2595

DOUG PERKS | HISTORY MATTERS

Within the 
space of eight 
years, three 
towns named 

“Charlestown” were estab-
lished by the Virginia Gen-
eral Assembly, each located 
in the region of Virginia west 
of the Blue Ridge Moun-
tains. The first “Charles-
town” was established in 
October 1786 on “eighty 
acres of land, the property of 
Charles Washington, lying in 
the county of Berkeley.” The 
second “Charlestown” was 
established on December 
7th, 1791 “at the mouth of 
Buffaloe creek, on the Ohio 
river, in the county of Ohio.” 
The third “Charlestown” was 
established on December 
19th, 1794 on “forty acres of 
land, the property of George 
Clendenin, at the mouth of 
Elk River, in the County of 
Kanawha.”

As was at the time a 
commonplace practice, 
each of Virginia’s three 
“Charlestowns” was given 

the name of a person 
somehow connected to the 
town’s founding. The first 
“Charlestown” was named 
for Charles Washington, 
youngest brother of General 
George Washington, who 
owned the land where his 
town was platted. Although 
initially in Berkeley County, 
when Jefferson County was 
formed in 1801, Charlestown 
was within the borders of the 
new county and was named 
the county seat. “Charles-
town” in Ohio County was 
named for its proprietor 
Charles Prather, and in 1796 
when Brooke County was 
formed from Ohio County, 
Charlestown was named its 
county seat. Brooke County 
officials recognized that 
three Virginia towns with 
the same name was at least 
one too many, and in 1816 
renamed their county seat 
Wellsburg to honor Alexan-
der Wells, Charles Prather’s 
son-in-law. Kanawha County 
was formed in 1788 out of 

Greenbrier and Montgomery 
counties, and when incorpo-
rated in 1794, Charlestown 
became its county seat. By 
1818 – 1819 Kanawha coun-
tians recognized the confu-
sion of having two towns 
with the same name and 
changed the name of their 
county seat by removing the 
“w” and calling their town 
Charleston.

For the next six decades, 
Charlestown and Charleston 
led a peaceful co-existence. 
That is not to say that there 
was no confusion, as was 
evidenced in 1859 when 
newspaper reporters in their 
dateline indicated that they 
were covering the news of 
John Brown’s trial from 
Charleston, Virginia. During 
the Civil War reporters con-
tinued to mistake Charleston 
for Charlestown, as both 
armies battled up and down 
the Shenandoah Valley. 
Cartographers on occasion 
made the same error indicat-
ing that Jefferson’s county 

seat was Charleston, but the 
similarity of the spelling 
of the two towns came into 
sharp focus when West Vir-
ginia became a state in 1863. 
Wheeling was initially the 
capital of the new state, but 
for five years beginning in 
1870 the capital moved from 
Wheeling to Charleston. In 
1875 the capital returned to 
Wheeling, which prompted 
a state-wide referendum in 
1877 that ended the capi-
tal city ping pong game by 
declaring that Charleston 
would become the perma-
nent state capital eight years 
hence in 1885.

As its status as the state’s 
permanent capital enhanced 
its prominence, Charleston 
became problematic for 
residents of the first Charles-
town. Charles Washington’s 
Town was in the midst of a 
renaissance and was among 
the more prominent towns 
in West Virginia. In 1881, 
Charlestown’s William Lyne 
Wilson became the third 

president of West Virginia 
University, and from 1883 
until 1895 he represented 
West Virginia’s 2nd Congres-
sional District. Beginning in 
1873 and continuing for the 
next four decades, the West 
Virginia Supreme Court of 
Appeals held alternating 
sessions in Charlestown and 
Charleston. Though residing 
in Kanawha County at the 
time of election, Emanuel 
Willis Wilson, West Virgin-
ia’s seventh governor, was 
born in next door neighbor 
Harpers Ferry. With corre-
spondence and commercial 
transactions emanating from 
or headed to Charlestown 
in Jefferson County, in the 
words of Colonel William 
Price Craighill, “We have 
in our State a Charleston as 
well as our Charlestown, and 
this fact produces much an-
noyance because letters are 
every day given to one which 
are intended for the other.”

With military precision, 
Craighill laid out his case in 

a March 23rd, 1886, letter 
to the Spirit of Jefferson’s 
Editor George Haines. He 
opened with the rhetorical 
question, “Why may not the 
name of one or the other be 
changed?” and then an-
swered his query with, “It 
would naturally be supposed 
that the town which has 
had its name longest should 
retain it.” He next recounted 
the chronology of the found-
ing of both towns reaching 
the conclusion that “Our 
town has therefore the prior 
claim to the name.” He then 
fired a shot across Charles-
ton’s bow:

It seems to me that this 
is an excellent time for 
Charleston to change her 
name, when she has become 
the permanent capital of 
the State and a city. Let her 
be called Kanawha City, or 
simply Kanawha. Additional 
emphasis would then be 
given to this really beautiful 

When Charlestown became Charles Town

(See  NAME  Page 9)

Jefferson County Museum Archives
The mastheads from consecutive issues of the Spirit of Jefferson are shown above.  For the issue of June 23, 1891, Charles Town is spelled Charlestown.  For the issue of 
June 30, 1891, the name is spelled with two words, as it is today. 


